
1

Notice of a meeting of
Planning Committee

Thursday, 22 March 2018
6.00 pm

Council Chamber - Municipal Offices

Membership
Councillors: Bernard Fisher (Vice-Chair), Paul Baker, Mike Collins, Colin Hay, 

Karl Hobley, Garth Barnes (Chair), Adam Lillywhite, Helena McCloskey, 
Chris Nelson, Tony Oliver, Louis Savage, Diggory Seacome, Pat Thornton, 
Simon Wheeler and Alex Hegenbarth

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the meeting

Agenda 

1.  APOLOGIES

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENT SITE VISITS

4.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS

5.  MINUTES OF LAST MEETING (Pages 5 - 18)

6.  PLANNING/LISTED BUILDING/CONSERVATION AREA 
CONSENT/ADVERTISEMENT APPLICATIONS, 
APPLICATIONS FOR LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 
CERTIFICATE AND TREE RELATED APPLICATIONS – 
SEE MAIN SCHEDULE

(Pages 57 - 62)

7.  ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES 
URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION

Contact Officer:  Judith Baker, Planning Committee Co-ordinator 
Email: builtenvironment@cheltenham.gov.uk

mailto:builtenvironment@cheltenham.gov.uk




3



This page is intentionally left blank



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

1 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

15th February 2018 
 

Present: 
 
Members (15) 
Councillors Barnes, Chair (GB); Fisher, Vice-Chair (BF); Collins (MC); Colin Hay (CH); Hegenbarth 
(AH); Hobley (KH); Lillywhite (AL); McCloskey (HM); Nelson (CN); Savage (LS); Seacome (DS); 
Thornton (PT); Wheeler (SW). 
 
Substitutes:   Councillor Rowena Hay (RH) 
  Councillor Paul McCloskey (PM) 
   
 
 
Officers 
Tracey Crews, Director of Planning (TC) 
Martin Chandler, Team Leader, Development Management (MC) 
Lucy White, Senior Planning Officer (LW) 
Michelle Payne, Senior Planning Officer (MP) 
Ben Hawkes, Planning Officer (BH) 
Chris Morris, Senior Heritage and Conservation Officer (CM) 
Nick Jonathan, Legal Officer (NJ) 
 
 

1. Apologies 
Councillors Baker and Oliver.  Councillors Savage and Rowena Hay sent apologies in advance for 
their late arrival. 
 
 
2. Declarations of interest 
There were none. 
 
 
3. Declarations of independent site visits 

i. Councillor Fisher – was not on Planning View, so has visited all three sites independently. 
ii. Councillor Paul McCloskey – 17/02447/FUL St Francis, Park Lane, Prestbury 
iii. Councillor Lillywhite – 17/02436/FUL 11 Lansdown Walk 

 
4. Public Questions 
There were none. 
 
 
5. Minutes of last meeting 
Resolved, that the minutes of the meeting held on 18th January 2018 be approved and signed as a 
correct record without corrections. 
 
 
 

Page 5
Agenda Item 5



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

2 

 

6.  Planning applications 
 

Application Number: 17/01644/FUL 

Location: Land at Manor Farm, Manor Road  
Proposal: Residential development of 2 no. bungalows and 6 no. houses, with associated 

access and landscaping (revised scheme following 14/01823/FUL) 
View: Yes 
Officer Recommendation: Permit 
Committee Decision: Permit 
Letters of Rep: 6 Update Report: None 

 
Introduction: 
LW introduced this application for eight dwellings on land to the rear of St Lawrence’s Church, which 
seeks revisions to an almost identical scheme permitted in 2015.  A similar application was made last 
year and due to come to Committee until it became clear that land ownership issues concerning the 
access lane made the application invalid.  The main changes are to fenestration, an increase in 
height, and a reduction in width of the access lane with the inclusion of the pedestrian footpath.  In 
2016, Ubico started using wider vehicles, which would make roadside collections unsuitable.  The 
applicant has agreed to make a private arrangement with an alternative refuse-collecting service, and 
has drafted a 106 agreement which has been agreed by all parties.  It also secures the land to the 
north of the site for church-related purposes, or garden/recreational use.  The application is at 
Committee at the request of Councillor Fisher, and the recommendation is to permit. 
 
 
Public Speaking: 
Mr Mark Snape, of Centaur Homes Ltd, in support 
Full permission was granted for a similar scheme in 2015, and this revised application only required 
due to an error on the land ownership certificate submitted by a previous applicant.  The revised 
application alters the access arrangements and the external design.  Due to changes in design 
standards, access had to be amended from a shared surface, approved in 2015, to one including a 
dedicated pedestrian footpath.  Since 2015, Ubico has increased the size of its refuse vehicles, which 
can no longer access the site.  Objections have been raised to the scheme in relation of refuse 
collection matters;  to remedy the situation, and avoid the need for residents to carry their bins the 
Church Road, where they would block the footpath, a private bin collection service is proposed, 
funded by residents of the development through a dedicated management company.  This has been 
secured by an S106 agreement, agreed by all parties, which allows the Council to have control over 
the approval of the private waste collection service prior to occupation of the dwellings, both now and 
in the future.   GCC Highways has not raised any technical objection to the access.  The external 
design alterations are minor in detail, and officers have not raised any objection.  Concerns related to 
ecology have been addressed through the process, and mitigation measures will be provided as part 
of the scheme, as they were in 2015.  In all other respects, the development remains as permitted in 
2015. 
 
Councillor Clucas, in objection 
As with the previous application at this site, she and local residents have a number of concerns about 
the scheme.  The 2014 officer report included consultee comments from the county ecologist, referring 
to a number of badger setts in this particular part of Swindon Village.  This valid point is reflected in 
the report, and monitoring and mitigation will encompass all land space.  However, this means that it is 
not possible to look seriously at the historical implications of building on this land, as highlighted by the 
County Archaeologist.  When considering the Swindon Village area, the JCS inspector was aware of 

Page 6



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

3 

 

the importance of the historic context and the conservation area, and the need to maintain a green 
halo round the village.  The Florence Convention, adopted by English law in 2005,  protects areas in 
their historical context and stipulates that development must be in keeping with the locality.  The 
protection of the church and its view from the surrounding area is also an issue of concern. Regarding 
access, is pleased the management company will look after refuse collection,  but this doesn’t include 
fire engines, emergency vehicles, delivery lorries, building lorries.  There is a potential danger here 
which cannot be avoided, not only for residents already living in the area, but also to those moving into 
the new properties.  There may be fire hydrants, but with no proper access for emergency vehicles, 
sprinklers will be needed in the new properties.  To sum up, the history of the site is not addressed; 
the height of the properties is not addressed; access to emergency and other big vehicles is not 
addressed; and protection of the view of the church is not addressed, despite the planning inspector 
acknowledging the importance of this on a previous occasion.   
 
Member debate: 
BF: the Parish Council and Councillor Clucas have both raised the issue of refuse collection; Swindon 
Hall, a historical house divided into flats, is about 100m up the road and has a similar narrow and 
restricted access.  Ubico provides a smaller vehicle to collect its bins; why can’t the same 
arrangement be made for this new development?  If a bin lorry can’t turn round at the bottom of the 
road, and drive out forward,  the same will apply to furniture vans and delivery lorries, and this could 
cause dangerous situations on Church Road.  Questions the validity of the highways survey, which 
completely missed the school bus, and cannot resolve the turning circle.  A reduction in the number of 
dwellings or change in the lay-out is needed, as Ubico vehicles aren’t that big compared with other 
delivery vehicles – much larger ones will need to be able to access the houses at times.  Didn’t like the 
design previously; considers it to contravene policy CP7, which requires design of the highest 
standard – this isn’t. 
 
SW:  was very much in mind to vote in support of this, as it was permitted last time, and if the 
business of the dustbin lorries can be addressed, there is no arguing with that.  However, Councillor 
Clucas raised a lot of issues, including badgers - there appears to be nowhere else for them to go ; 
also furniture vans (as well as ambulances and fire engines) – these are not small Bedford vans, but 
large vehicles, which will turn up in Church Road and could end up blocking the highway for several 
hours.  This problem isn’t addressed by getting a private company to empty the bins; this is just the tip 
of the iceberg. In view of these additional problems, is struggling to support the proposal. 
 
[Councillor Rowena Hay arrived at this point.] 
 
MC:   is also interested in Councillor Clucas’s points, and would like more information on the private 
bin collection.  As an ex-delivery driver, can confirm that if a property is difficult to access, drivers will 
park irresponsibly – they have to deliver in a certain time, regardless of any inconvenience to other 
road users – and if necessary will drive down narrow road, making a mess of verges etc.  There are 
many potential problems arising from this issue as it stands.  Would like to hear officer comments on 
the refuse collection issue.   
 
CH:  will the private refuse collection have to comply with the current recycling arrangements put in 
place by Ubico and agreed with the rest of the county?  Do we have the capability, should we change 
the arrangements for recycling. To make sure that the private contractor complies with the new 
requirements?  Can officers explain the following:  one of the drawings shows a dark line at the top of 
the road – is this a gate?  If so, it shouldn’t be there, unless there are exceptional circumstances; 
gated communities are isolating and wrong. 
 
LW, in response: 

Page 7



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

4 

 

- To BF, the issue regarding the access lane is to do with the width of the access at the junction 
with Church Lane, not the width of the lane of turning circle.  Highways officers were happy with 
the  2016-17 application, confirming that emergency vehicles and normal delivery vans would be 
able to reach the site.  Regarding removal lorries, companies usually have different-sized 
vehicles, and it will be up to the occupiers to notify the company in advance about the access 
issues; 

- A recent survey was carried out regarding badgers, and confirmed that a wildlife corridor on the 
perimeter of the site will allow free movement for badgers.  The ecology report suggested a 
condition which has been included; 

- The private refuse collection service will be set up prior to the development, and the scope, 
method, frequency of collection, receptacles, details of recycling, will all be covered.  Details of 
how the company will set up a contract with the council, with all details, how breaches will be dealt 
with, ensuring that the Council has all the details if needs from the management company, will be 
set up prior to occupation; 

 
[Councillor Savage arrived at this point.] 
 
- all recycling will be in accordance with CBC policy, and if this changes in the future, the company 

will have to adapt; 
- is not sure about the gate referred to by CH, but if there is one, it will be removed. 
 
HM:  has two points to make.  Remembers the previous application in 2015, but as there are some 
new Members since then, can officers remind Members why the most obvious access from the cul-de-
sac hasn’t been considered?  Regarding badgers, they are nocturnal creatures, and note that 
Condition 19 refers to hours of operation during the construction phase; can we ensure that these 
won’t affect the nocturnal habits of the badgers? 
 
LW, in response: 
- the most obvious access is from Manor Court, but there is a ransom strip here and the land is not 

available. We have to consider the scheme as it is presented; 
- regarding hours of operation, can look into this and change the hours, taking the badgers into 

consideration. 
 
BF:  for the record, there is no gate at the top of the site – this is long gone.  It is a public footpath, and 
has to be left open.  Is still concerned about Ubico – to turn off Church Road, the vans will have to 
cross the centre, and there is no way they can do this – they are fixed bed vehicles, not articulated.  If 
Ubico says it is dangerous to swing out, all vehicles will be in the same situation, and accidents are 
likely to occur.  There is a 30mph speed limit along here, and not many people break it – it is a narrow, 
tight road, with walls on both sides.  The proposed arrangement will cause a highway problem and 
could lead to accidents.  The police don’t record all the incidents that occur, but there have bee cars 
on their rooves along this stretch, and we don’t want to see that repeated.  The whole thing needs 
rethinking. 
 
CN:  wheel-washing is normally a standard condition but is sometimes missed.  Can we make sure it 
is included here, and make sure that it is enforced?  This condition needs to be in place right at the 
start – this is when it will be most muddy.  It has become quite an issue elsewhere, and if construction 
vehicles are coming out on the corner, it could be even worse. 
 
LW, in response: 
- wheel washing is part of Condition 19, and should be enforced from the start and throughout the 

remaining stages;  planning officers don’t routinely check conditions with enforcement officers. 

Page 8



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

5 

 

 
MJC, in response: 
- is not aware of the cases CN is referring to, but there have been cases on conditions not worded 

quite as they should be.  Over the last 18 months, this has been reviewed, and conditions have 
been run past enforcements officers to make sure they are happy with the working and trigger 
points.   It should be OK here. 

 
Vote on officer recommendation to permit 
9 in support 
4 in objection 
2 abstentions 
PERMIT 
 
 
 

Application Number: 17/02436/FUL 

Location: 11 Lansdown Walk, Cheltenham  
Proposal: Creation of a fire escape from second floor bedroom and roof terrace 
View: Yes 
Officer Recommendation: Permit 
Committee Decision: Permit 
Letters of Rep: 4 Update Report: None 

 
Introduction: 
MP introduced this application, which concerns a newly constructed residence in the conservation 
area – one of five contemporary developments in 2015.  This application proposes a new fire escape 
and roof terrace, provided in an existing area of inaccessible flat roof, together with the addition of 
French doors and the building up of the parapet for privacy.  It is at Committee at the request of 
Councillor Mason, and the recommendation is to permit. 
 
 
Public Speaking: 
There was none. 
 
 
Member debate: 
CH:  how does what is proposed constitute a fire escape?  It doesn’t look like one. 
 
BF:  what is the fire officer’s opinion of it? 
 
MP, in response: 
- the application submitted this application following the visit of a fire officer, and can confirm that 

the proposal meets the current guidelines.  The roof terrace will be an additional escape route, 
with a roll-out portable ladder, which hooks over the front wall and drops down into the courtyard. 

 
AH:  is interested in the precedent this could set – someone could say they want a swimming pool and 
the extra water will help put out a fire! 
 
PM:  from past experience, before voting in favour of a rope ladder, would be inclined to test it out – it 
isn’t easy. 

Page 9



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

6 

 

 
GB:  the fire escape ladder is a metal ladder which rolls down the wall.  In the event of a fire, it would 
be up to the individual whether to use it or not. 
 
 
Vote on officer recommendation to permit 
14 in support 
1 in objection 
PERMIT   
 
 

Application Number: 17/02447/FUL 

Location: St Francis, Park Lane, Prestbury  
Proposal: Demolish existing and construct a new detached dwelling 
View: Yes 
Officer Recommendation: Permit 
Committee Decision: Refuse 
Letters of Rep: 22 Update Report: Officer update (circulated to Members via email on 

Wednesday) 

 
Introduction: 
BH described the proposal as above.  The current dwelling is not listed, neither is it in a conservation 
area.  It is in the greenbelt, and part of a suggested new conservation area, which is currently the 
subject of a consultation process.  There is an extant planning permission for extensions to the house.  
Historic England has been consulted regarding the possible listing of the house, but does not consider 
it worthy of listing, for reasons set out in the report.  The application is at Committee at the request of 
Councillor Payne, in view of the high level of local concern, and the officer recommendation is to 
permit, subject to conditions. 
 
 
Public Speaking: 
Mr William Strachan, neighbour, in objection 
Is a resident of Park Lane, and speaks on behalf of the 22 households which have objected to this 
application.  Is also a town planner, with 40 years’ experience.  It would be completely wrong to accept 
the report on the hypothetical assumption that the house will be demolished, come what may.  The 
scale and materials are wrong and there is not one reference area, volume, or height in the report.  
The proposal is materially larger than the existing dwelling, and 140 cubic metres bigger than the fall-
back; fails to comply 300 cubic metres.  Policy CO7 is blown apart by this, and the proposal is 
indefensible in terms of both GB2 and the National Planning Policy Framework.  It will be the largest 
house in the smallest plot, two times the footprint of the existing dwelling.  The house is situated in the 
green belt, and a potential conservation area – the council’s own conservation officer says it all and is 
supported by the Civic Society, with concerns not only about the loss of St Francis but also about the 
design, materials and  orientation of the proposed replacement.  St Francis may not be a designated 
heritage asset, but the Conservation Officer has highlighted Paragraph 135 of the NPPF, which states 
that the effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken 
into account when determining an application – it is wrong therefore to say that St Francis has no 
protection. The Architects Panel consider the design to be unsupportable.  The scale, materials, and 
orientation will destroy the character of the area. The report states that the orientation of the proposed 
dwelling mirrors Crossways, but this is incorrect – it is at right angles to Crossways.  Where is the bat 

Page 10



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

7 

 

survey?  Where is the ecology report?  Urges Members to reject this appalling proposal and save the 
street. 
 
 
Mr Mark Le Grand, agent, in support 
The proposed development comprises the demolition of St Francis and the construction of a 
replacement dwelling.  Understands that some of the neighbours feel aggrieved by the proposed 
demolition, but the building isn’t listed or in a conservation area, and it is therefore entirely at the 
owners’ discretion to demolish it on receipt of a certificate of lawfulness, which he understands will be 
issued tomorrow.  The applicants want to create a dream family home, and gained permissions for a 
side and rear extension in 2016 and 2017.  However, both of these schemes proved financially 
unviable, at which point the viability of a new-build scheme started to be considered.  The initial design 
for a three-storey dwelling was prepared and a formal application submitted in August 2017.  It 
received a negative response from both the planning department and local residents and was 
subsequently withdrawn.  A formal pre-application consultation followed, and the new scheme was 
prepared in strict accordance with  planning officers’ advice and with local policies.  During the design 
process, specific consideration was given to the final design, by way of size, scale and bulk, to ensure 
the proposal was sympathetic to the surrounding area, working closely with the planning officers and 
in accordance with their detailed and constructive advice.  Prior to submission of the application, also 
liaised with a number of local residents, and in particular the owners of Kennan to the west, leading to 
the removal of the first floor terrace area originally located to the rear.  During tonight’s consideration 
of the proposal, would ask Members to remember that Historic England does not consider the building 
worthy of listing, so this proposal is just to replace one four-bedroomed house with another; that the 
stone, windows and slates used will all be local; and that although the design may not be to 
everyone’s taste, it is compliant with the Local Plan, Supplementary Planning Guidance, and the 
NPPF.  Is confident the scheme is suitable for the site and locality, and hopes that Members will be 
mindful to approve. 
 
Councillor Payne, in objection 
There is an error on the Planning Portal, which shows Prestbury Parish Council as having ‘no 
objection’ – two requests have been made to remove this, but it has not yet happened.  Mr Strachan 
has outlined all the salient points; will now add some detail and context to those concerns.  The case 
officer’s report embodies the NPPF principle – a presumption in favour of development – but this 
should be based on impartial and accurate assessment of the facts. The conservation officer has 
commented that St Francis and Kennan have historic and architectural interest, and group value with 
distinct character and appearance.  He states that St Francis is one of the most important individual 
buildings, and the area would have a notably poorer character and appearance without it; this may 
influence the conservation area designation.  Is uncomfortable that CBC, which prides itself on 
conservation and heritage, should dismiss the demolition of St Francis as ‘unfortunately acceptable’ – 
it is no such thing, and the Council must take responsibility for the loss of an architecturally important 
building.  The views of the conservation officer and Architects’ Panel are dismissed, and the views of 
the Civic Society would not have been published had Mr Strachan not insisted the informal notes be 
made public – clearly an attempt to hide an adverse opinion.  Officers take the view that the tests set 
by the Architects’ Panel for the replacements dwelling are set artificially high due to a desire to se the 
building retained, but there are no tests in the Architects’ Panel report and if there were, would it be 
wrong to seek the best and most suitable design for the location?   
 
Policy CO7 is pivotal to this application, relating to replacement buildings in the green belt, and 
requiring that these should not be more than 15% larger than the original; this proposal is 75% larger.  
Even factoring in the extensions in the extant permission, the proposal would still be 22% larger than 
the original.  This approach fails, however, as a footnote to CO7 specifically defines ‘original’ as 

Page 11



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

8 

 

excluding any extensions, built or not.   The officer also suggests that the 2015 Town and Country 
Planning Act provides for more generous allowances, outlined in a notice from the DCLG in March 
2016 – but this applies to extensions to existing buildings and not to new builds. 
 
The case officer confirmed that CO7 is the relevant policy here, so why have the provisions of that 
policy not been adhered to, as in previous cases?  It would be untenable for officers to change 
planning policy on the hoof or adopt a more flexible approach to suit a particular application, as 
appears to be the case here.     
 
To conclude – in addition to authoritative statutory objections, every single household in Park Lane 
and some from outside have voiced strong opposition.  If the owner wishes to demolish the property, 
that is his choice, but in that event, residents would want to see a good, modern and sensitive design 
that compliments and enhances the area, which the present proposal fails to do on so many levels.  
Urges Members to refuse the application.   

 
 
Member debate: 
CN:  can officers clarify a number of points raised by the speakers before Members enter into 
discussion:  firstly the bat survey; secondly, Councillor Payne’s insinuation that adverse opinion from 
the Civic Society and Architects’ Panel was deliberately hidden; and thirdly, the increase in size 
according to policy CO7. 
 
HM:  has been on Planning Committee for eight years, and officers will be tired of hearing her say how 
much she hates to see buildings demolished when there is nothing wrong with them. Has several 
other points to make here.  Has looked at the consultation document for the proposed conservation 
area in this part of Prestbury; realises that this carries little material weight, but on the first page of  
that document is a picture of Kennan, the mirror image of the house under consideration tonight.  This 
indicates that it is a building of some importance, and the fact that a new conservation area is being 
proposed would suggest that the whole area is of historical importance.  We therefore need to 
consider the effect on the area of the loss of this positive building – Policy SC9 of the JCS could be 
used as a refusal reason here, referring to designated or non-designated heritage assets.  Is also 
concerned about the size of the house and garage on the plot – it leaves no amenity space for a 
garden. 
 
MC:  is on the same page as HM here – what’s wrong with the existing house?   It looks very nice.  Is 
the application compliant with Policy CO7?  The objector said it isn’t and quoted dimensions; can 
officers clarify please.  The Civic Society has summed up the application very well – agrees with their 
comments completely. 
 
PM:  also agrees with the Civic Society and the Architects’ Panel.  Is very sad that a building like this 
could be lost.  Is a substitute Member of the Committee,   and tonight is the first time anyone has said 
that planning permission is irrelevant – that the demolition notice can be granted and the bulldozers 
move in, regardless of the decision made tonight.  This seems bizarre – is there any further 
explanation?  Is very sad at the prospect of this house being demolished, and is minded to vote 
against the application before Members tonight, but it seems the house could be reduced to rubble 
anyway.   
 
BF:  this is a very difficult decision.  The update includes comments from Historic England:  the house 
was built in 1926, and the Arts and Crafts period refers to the last quarter of the 19th century; the 
architect designed many houses, none of which are listed.  It would be wrong not to take note of this 

Page 12



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

9 

 

evaluation of the architectural merit of the building from people who really know.  The building isn’t 
locally indexed, but even if it was, it wouldn’t be protected; there is a property in Deep Street, 
Prestbury, which is due for demolition.  So as for protecting the original building – it isn’t an Arts and 
Crafts house, but in the Arts and Crafts style; there is nothing worthy of protection.  The house could 
be demolished easily, if that is what the owners want.  Demolition rules are very different from 
planning rules.  Doesn’t like the proposed building, but the existing one clearly isn’t a heritage asset, 
as confirmed by Historic England.  More and more people in Cheltenham are buying an address – this 
is the realist of 21st century Britain and what the system allows them to do, even though we may not 
like it.  Is minded to ask for a deferral – to get the issues in the report sorted – but doesn’t think a 
refusal is the right way to go. 
 
RH:  would like to hear the officers’ responses to the earlier questions and take it from there. 
 
KH:  is quite surprised at himself, but doesn’t think this building should be permitted.  The existing 
house is visually superior to that which is proposed, and its demolition would be a loss to the 
community.  Accepts Historic England’s conclusion that the house doesn’t tick the necessary boxes for 
listing – the requirements for this are rightly set extremely high – but that isn’t to say that the building 
doesn’t have value or contribute to the heritage scene in that part of Prestbury.  The conservation 
officer’s comments are in that vein.  Councillor Payne said in his speech that local residents were not 
necessarily in objection to the principle of knocking the house down, depending on what replaces it, 
but would urge them to preserve the present house – it is attractive and would be a loss to the 
community and to the town.  Would back HM’s suggested refusal reason. 
 
SW:  disregarding the other arguments, can understand where Historic England draw the line with the 
listing of this property, but would suggest that it shouldn’t be considered in terms of a single building.  
It contributes to the area as a whole, and is one of a pair, with Kennan.  The new building would make 
Kennan appear out of place; if the applicants build a house more like St Francis, they might as well 
leave it as it is.  On Planning View, wondered who would want to demolish such a lovely building?  
There may be issues inside which make it unacceptable, but this probably isn’t the case – the 
applicants just want a different building.  Will go with the other Members who are minded to refuse – 
would like to retain the building that is already there. 
 
PT:  would be very sad to see St Francis demolished.  Is thinking about Spring Lane, where a number 
of old houses have been demolished to make way for new ones, and this has only recently been 
developed.  In another ten years or so, St Francis could well be listed by Historic England, and the 
consultation is underway to make this part of Prestbury its own little conservation area.  Where do we 
stand on that?  Will it strengthen the refusal reason if the proposed conservation area is taken into 
account?  How far along is the consultation?  How soon will it be place?  Would it be worth deferring a 
decision until next month? 
 
MJC, in response: 
- will consider PM’s question first, as it is important Members understand the situation regarding the 

possible demolition of the house.  This has been a difficult application, and is not being taken 
lightly by officers in any way.  They don’t want to see the house demolished but have to consider 
the prior notice application in a policy context.  Was not overly enamoured with the way the 
speaker referred to the demolition notice being issued tomorrow, which was needlessly 
inflammatory; 

- However, permitted development allows all sorts of things, and demolition is a permitted 
development right where houses are not protected.  The only things the local authority can 
consider is whether the property can be demolished safely or not; it cannot pass any judgement 
on a home-owner’s intention to demolish their own property.  In this case, St Francis is a detached 

Page 13



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

10 

 

property with space around it – so there is no reason for the authority to prevent it being 
demolished.  At Para. 6.5.5, the applicants suggest they will flex their muscles with PD rights, and 
it therefore has to be a material consideration;  

- the council has a set period in which to determine whether or not a building can be safely 
demolished; if an answer isn’t given within that time, the presumption is that this is acceptable; 

- officers have discussed this with the agent, and agreed not to issue a decision before the meeting 
and have therefore held off, but there is no technical reason to withhold consent. 

 
BH, in response: 
- to Councillor Payne’s comments and CN’s question, the comments of the Architects’ Panel and 

Civic Society were circulated to Members the day they were received.  The reference in the officer 
report to the views of the Civic Society was based on dialogue, not a formal discussion.  The 
comments were circulated immediately, once received, and were not withheld; 

- regarding the conservation area consultation, this is in progress, as part of the new Local Plan 
process.  Took  advice from the conservation policy officer, whose comments are included in the 
report;  the consultation is in very early stages at the moment – at the time the application was 
submitted, the consultation hadn’t started – and this therefore carries very little weight 

- if the Local Plan had already been adopted, the situation would be different, but the current 
position is that the house isn’t listed or in a conservation area, and the application must therefore 
be considered against local policies and the NPPF; 

- HM referred to a garage, but the proposal is for the house only; a garage is not part of this 
scheme; 

- The house has been called a non-designated heritage asset – this isn’t a description planning 
officers come across very often, but would expect to see such a building on the local list if it has 
such value, yet it isn’t included.  Maybe it should or could have been included; the conservation 
officer is present to explain this further; 

- Regarding the green belt policy and Policy CO7, tried to address this as well as possible, but can 
see that it could appear like a contradiction.  The current policy refers to a percentage increase, 
but there has been a change in permitted development allowances since the policy was adopted, 
under the Town and Country Planning Act of 2015 -  it used to be quite restrictive regarding 
percentage increase, but is now more relaxed in terms of what can considered without planning 
permission; 

- Policy CO7 is correct and still relevant, but we have to take into consideration the NPPF and 
emerging local plan, which are more concerned with the impact on the openness of the green belt; 

- It is evident that from the existing dwelling to what is proposed today is larger than the percentage 
increase given in CO7, but the extant planning permission has to be taken into account and how 
much the house could be extended straight away. 

 
MJC, in response: 
- it’s tricky when the Local Plan policy is out of date with current thinking – our 2006 Local Plan 

policies refer to the 1995 permitted development order.  These don’t exist any more; PD rights are 
a lot more generous than they were in 1995.  The key here is what this council is required to do.  
Our policy is based on dated PD allowances; NPPF advice allows for some degree of judgement  
- is the replacement material larger than the original dwelling?  This is also the advice of the JCS 
and emerging Local Plan.  Material considerations indicate it would be wrong to consider the 
application only with reference to Policy CO7 as currently stands.  Our policy is not in line with 
current thinking; 

- this allows us to make a judgement; the extant permission for extensions to the house is 
considered acceptable, and the replacement dwelling will not be materially larger.  Officers have 
looked at this carefully, considering both the fall-back position and the green belt policy, and are 
satisfied with the result; 

Page 14



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

11 

 

- regarding a bat survey, the weekly list of new planning applications is routinely forwarded to the 
Gloucestershire Centre for Environmental Records (GCER) for screening; they come back with 
any sitings in the vicinity of particular proposals.  These are not published on line, due to their 
sensitive nature.  Will locate the report on this site now. 

-  
CM, in response: 
- there are a number of things here which need clarification.  Is not saying that the building should 

be listed or is listable – it is not, and has no national significance or value; 
- the dwelling is in the proposed conservation area, but as already stated, this offers no protection 

at this stage.  If it was, the building would be considered to make a positive contribution, and 
couldn’t be demolished; 

- the house does not have any local listing or protection, but could be regarded as a no-designated 
heritage asset; Paragraph 135 of the NPPF states that a ‘balanced judgement will be required 
having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset’; 

- in this instance, the scale of harm is the total loss of the house, which is very significant.  When 
measured against the merits of the building, does not consider its demolition to be justified. 

 
CN:  will be pleased to have a definitive answer regarding the bat survey, and appreciated MJC’s 
comments about delaying the demolition – a good call in view of this inflammatory move.  Thanks for 
this wise approach.  The big point now is the different opinions, and  the fact that if this was already a 
conservation area, officers wouldn’t be recommending approval.  Looking at the draft Cheltenham 
Plan, and proposal to make this area a conservation area, the public consultation ends on 9th April; it 
will then be pulled together and be sent to the Inspector.  The main things the Inspector will look at are 
issues of soundness – he/she won’t be making changes to the Local Plan to make it ‘better’ – that isn’t 
the remit.  Would suggest that we should therefore be placing much greater legal weight on the 
conservation area proposal.  Enough has been said to have serious concerns about this application.  
Definitely won’t vote in support of it as it currently stands.  
 
HM:  thanks for the explanation of PD rights; it sounds as if an applicant makes an extension under 
PD rights, then another, they could end up with a house three times the size of the original building.  
Thanks also to CM for confirming the situation regarding the ‘non-designated heritage asset’ – this 
house is one, and JCS Policy SD9 can therefore be used as a refusal reason. Also Local Plan policy 
CP3(c) – if the application does not conserve the best of the environment – the Civic Society and 
Architects’ Panel both conclude that it does not. 
 
CH:  has some questions about the emerging Local Plan and conservation area. If Local Plan was 
already agreed, and this house was situated in the new conservation area, we would have a lot of 
control about what goes in its place.  The green belt objection is strong, in relation to the increase in 
size from the original building, but PD rights have changed from their original criteria on percentage.  
Officers acknowledge that the proposed dwelling will be larger than the extended existing dwelling and 
that it requires a judgement call as to whether it will harm the green belt.  The responsible judgement 
of officers is that it will not, but for Members, it appears to go beyond what is acceptable.  The bat 
question is still to be answered - if they are in the roof, is that grounds for stopping the demolition?  
For a number of reasons, officers have said this is an on-balance decision, and it looks as if Members 
are coming down just the other side; the application should be refused. 
 
PT:  Park Lane is a very complete little area; the new dwelling will weather, but it will ruin the look of 
the whole lane.  It is a gentle place, historically interesting.  Cannot vote to have this house 
demolished. 
 

Page 15



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

12 

 

AL:   the proposed building doesn’t complement or respect the area.  St Francis is prominent in the 
street, and complements the street scene.  Without it, the proposed conservation area will be in 
question.  Without St Francis, Kennan will lost its group value.  Paragraph 135 of the NPPF talks 
about having regard to the scale of harm of the loss of a building – in this case that will be significant.  
Did the agent say it was not financially viable to extend the four-bedroomed house?  Members should 
make a decision on this application tonight, not defer. 
 
GB:  does BF still want to propose deferral? 
 
BF:  a lot of his points have been answered but no-one has fully answered the PD question, and a 
decision on the demolition notice must be made tomorrow – the reality is now.  Historic England has 
stated that the house features two architectural styles – mock Tudor and butterfly plan – and is not an 
Arts and Crafts building.  Is a great fan of Arts and Crafts houses, but this dwelling is not protectable 
as one, and could technically be demolished without any argument.  Considers the merits of what is 
proposed to be doubtful, a pastiche of the 1970s; Park Lane has some more modern houses, and St 
Francis is a nice building, but not a 1920s design.  A pre-war bungalow has been demolished in 
Spring Lane, and it is difficult to refuse the proposal tonight as most people are wanting to conserve 
something which is impossible to conserve if the owners want it demolished.  They have paid over 
£1m for it to knock it down – clearly they want to live in the area but not the house. Will not move to 
defer.  Officers have given a good explanation for their recommendation.  Will vote in support 
 
RH:  would like to revisit some of MJC’s comments with reference to PD rights.  Understands that PD 
rights have been extended, but does the fact that this property is in the green belt have any impact?   
And did he say that the replacement dwelling must be a better building than the previous one? Is this 
better? Irrespective of whether it’s an Arts and Crafts building or listable, and Historic England’s 
comments, would say two things:  the proposed new design is not at all a better replacement, and it is 
materially larger.  Will not support the application. 
 
MJC, in response: 
- apologies for lack of information regarding bats.  The GCER report records a sighting of a bat 

210m from the application site in 1993, and no sightings since then.  This is clearly close, but not 
the application site itself; 

- for avoidance of doubt, if Members are minded to approve, a condition requiring a visual 
inspection can be included; 

- if Members are minded to refuse, they can do something similar and include the lack of a bat 
survey as a refusal reason.  This would be a belt and braces approach, but if the applicant goes to 
appeal, they can submit the additional information at that point.   Conditions are used to make an 
unacceptable development acceptable; 

- to RH, regarding PD rights, the green belt doesn’t bring extra restrictions on PD.  We shouldn’t get 
too distracted by this.  Our current Local Plan policy talks about PD rights which no longer exist.  
The proposed dwelling is materially larger than the building it is replacing;  

- as it looks as if a refusal is likely, would like to clarify two key parts of the debate:  the 
conservation area matter, and the question whether the proposed development warrants the 
demolition on the building, as outlined by CM; 

- officers recognise the value of the building but have to consider the case at this particular point in 
time; the concept of a non-designated heritage asset still has a way to go.  Policy CP3 has some 
relevance here, and the Civic Society’s comments neatly encapsulate the issue; 

- if Members want to pursue this line, it would not be unreasonable; the Inspector would give little 
weight to the conservation area argument, but may have more sympathy with the non-designated 
heritage asset; 

Page 16



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

13 

 

- regarding the green belt, the proposed dwelling is materially larger than the existing building – can 
include that argument too, though it may have less luck at appeal.  It would be worth including 
both, and the bats. 

 
 
CH:  to clarify, is not sure if refusing planning permission tonight gives protection against the potential 
demolition, which could be permitted tomorrow.  If a bat survey is required, will this have to be 
postponed?  Do the conservation area issues give protection against demolition?   Whether this house 
is or isn’t a non-designated heritage asset depends on it not being demolished, and the link between 
the non-designated heritage asset and the conservation area is important – it would be a material 
factor in the conservation area.   We need to know how these elements work together, before going to 
the vote.   
 
MJC, in response: 
- a decision on the demolition notice needs to be issued tomorrow, and is inclined to say that the 

building shouldn’t be demolished until a bat survey has been carried out.  Is not saying the 
building will be protected – it isn’t a straight yes/no answer – but a temporary mitigation.  There is 
no protection from a conservation point of view; 

 
 
Vote on officer recommendation to permit 
0 in support 
13 in objection 
2 abstentions 
NOT CARRIED 
 
 
GB:  will now take a vote on HM’s move to refuse.  MJC will draft refusal reasons based on Local 
Policy CP3(c), JCS Policy SD9, a requirement for a bat survey, and the non-designated heritage 
asset status of the house.  With Members’ agreement, GB and BF will approve these refusal reasons. 
 
HM:  what is suggested is the harm to the non-designated heritage asset – Kennan – if St Francis is 
demolished.  If it is replaced by a new house, Kennan will be harmed. 
 
MJC, in response: 
- the issue of the merits of the replacements building have not been discussed.  The wording of 

Policy CP7 – that the building will be contextually inappropriate – can also be added.   
 
CH:  can the refusal reasons be circulated to all the Committee, to be sure they are representative of ?  
This would give more comfort, as BF’s comments tonight have been at variance with the views of 
everyone else. 
 
PT:  it will be recorded in the minutes. 
 
BF:  has spoken at variance to others during the debate, but did not vote in support of the application.   
 
GB:  Members can rely on officers who have listened to all the debate tonight and advised as to which 
refusal reasons should stand up at appeal.  BF and GB can ensure these are OK.  Wouldn’t want to 
circulate to all Members, as this will set a precedent.  It needs to be sorted out tomorrow; Members 
can trust GB and BF to do the right thing. 
 

Page 17



D R A F T   M I N U T E S 
 

 

14 

 

Vote on HM’s move to refuse on CP3(c), JCS Policy SD9, bat survey, and non-designated 
heritage asset status of the house 
14 in support 
0 in objection 
1 abstention 
REFUSED 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.55pm.  
 
 

Page 18



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00127/FUL & LBC OFFICER: Miss Michelle Payne 

DATE REGISTERED: 22nd January 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY: 19th March 2018 

WARD: Park PARISH: n/a 

APPLICANT: Mr And Mrs Nash 

AGENT: Ford Architecture 

LOCATION: 21 Tivoli Road, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: FUL - Extension and alteration of existing single storey garage block, and 
alterations to rear ground floor fenestration 
 
LBC - Extension and alteration of existing single storey garage block, 
alterations to rear ground floor fenestration, and internal alterations to ground 
floor rear 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Permit / Grant 
 
 

  
 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 19
Agenda Item 6a



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 This application relates to a detached, grade II listed Villa, c1834-40, on the northwest 
side of Tivoli Road within the Tivoli Character Area, one of 19 character areas that 
together form Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area. 

1.2 Tivoli Lane, a historic service lane, runs parallel to Tivoli Road, to the rear, and the 
property is set back towards to the rear of the plot. 

1.3 The applicant is seeking planning permission and listed building consent for the extension 
and alteration of an existing single storey garage block, and alterations to rear ground 
floor fenestration; listed building consent is also sought for internal alterations at ground 
floor.   

1.4 Revised plans have been submitted during the course of the application in response to 
concerns raised by the Conservation Officer. Namely, the window to the dining room is 
shown to be retained, and the existing sitting room is shown to be re-used.  Additionally, 
the proposed alteration to increase the height of the existing gate and gate piers has been 
omitted in its entirety. 

1.5 The application is before committee at the request of Cllr Harman on behalf of the 
neighbour.  Members will visit the site on planning view. 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  

Constraints: 
Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
Conservation Area 
Listed Building 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
CB16533/00  PERMIT  28th July 1983      
Alterations and extension 
 
CBL0513/00  GRANT  28th July 1983      
Alterations and extension 
 
02/00274/LBC        GRANT  26th April 2002      
Minor works to partition to create bathroom, consolidating ex sanitary facilities; removing 
redundant equipment, improving elevations 
 
10/00847/LBC        GRANT  21st July 2010      
Internal and external alterations to existing lean-to addition at rear 
 
10/01487/LBC        REFUSE       9th November 2010      
Internal alterations to provide improved access between dining room and kitchen 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 3 Sustainable environment  
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design 
BE 5 Boundary enclosures in conservation areas  

Page 20



BE 10 Boundary enclosures to listed buildings  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD8 Historic Environment 
INF1 Transport Network 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008) 
Tivoli Character Area Appraisal and Management Plan (2008) 
 
National Guidance 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
 

4. CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
Heritage and Conservation 
8th February 2018  
The key consideration in relation to these comments is the impact of the works the listed 
building and the conservation area. Section 16 (2) of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires local planning authorities to have special regard to 
the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses, whilst section 72 (1) requires local 
authorities to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of the conservation area. 
 
The application seeks the extension and alteration to the existing single storey garage 
block, internal alterations and alterations to the front entrance piers and gates.  
 
Internal Alterations 
The proposed internal alterations are acceptable in principle. Confirmation will be needed of 
the 4 panel door currently used to enter the sitting room will be retained and re-used? 
Detailed drawings of the other internal doors will also be needed but can be conditioned.  
 
French Doors 
The principle of the insertion of French doors to the sitting room is acceptable as this is a 
modern window of little historic significance. Concern is raised over the insertion of French 
doors to the dining room, where this window is historic, as evident by the panes of historic 
glass. This window therefore needs to be retained.  
 
Garage 
Whilst the principle of the replacement garage is acceptable as the existing is of limited 
architectural merit. However, concern is raised as to how far forward the proposed garage 
would project. Whilst there has been a slight step back, a further set back is needed in 
order for the degree of subservience to be remain, and the character of the detached villa 
set within space to be retained.  
 
Gates 
Concern is raised over the principle of the pillar extensions, whilst these are not historic 
they contribute to the character of the conservation area. Lower pillars and gates aligned 
centrally up with the principle door are a traditional feature of Regency detached properties. 
This therefore was designed to allow views of the principle elevation. 
Whilst there is a mix of pillars within the area, the majority are of a similar, and thus the 
introduction of taller pillars adjacent to the gates would appear incongruous. Where taller 
pillars are used these are primarily at corner plots, and not characteristic of the pedestrian 
entrances. 

Page 21



 
 
 
Summary 
The principle of the work is acceptable. However for this application to be supported the 
historic sash window, and existing pillars should be retained, and the garage reduced in 
size. If this cannot be agreed, the application should be refused.  
 
Cheltenham Civic Society 
9th February 2018 
We concur with the concerns raised by the neighbour, at 19 Tivoli Road, regarding loss of 
light to SSE facing Wall. We assume that the planning officer will check this. 
 
The garage should be located further back on the site so that it does not compromise the 
visual gap between Nos. 21 and 19 Tivoli Road; the shower room to the gym would have to 
be omitted to achieve this. 
 
There is inconsistency between elevation and plan of garage door. 
 
The new gates are too high and will form a blank 'face' to the street. 
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

5.1 Letters of notification were sent to 11 neighbouring properties.  In addition, a site notice 
was posted and an advert published in the Gloucestershire Echo.   

5.2 In response to the publicity, an objection has been raised by the neighbour at 19 Tivoli 
Road; the comments have been circulated in full to Members but the principal concern 
appears to relate to a loss of light to windows in the side elevation of this neighbouring 
property. 

 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS 
 
6.1 Determining Issues 

6.1.1 The main considerations when determining these applications for planning 
permission and listed building consent relate to design and impact on the listed building; 
impact on neighbouring amenity; and access and highway safety. 

6.2 Design and impact on listed building 

6.2.1 Saved local plan policy CP7 advises that all new development should be of a high 
standard of architectural design; and complement and respect neighbouring development 
and local character.  Extensions must avoid harm to the architectural integrity of the 
building; and the unacceptable erosion of open space about the building.  The policy is 
generally consistent with design advice set out within adopted JCS policy SD4 and the 
NPPF. 

6.2.2 Additionally, where the development involves works to a listed building and/or is 
proposed within a conservation area, the Local Planning Authority is statutorily required to 
pay special attention to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any 
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses, and preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of that area, in accordance with Sections 16(2) 
and 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

Page 22



6.2.3 As mentioned at paragraph 1.4 above, the proposals have been revised during the 
course of the application in response to concerns raised by the Conservation Officer, 
whose comments can be viewed in full at section 4. Following these revisions, the only 
outstanding concern raised by Conservation is in relation to the proposed garage and how 
far it would project forward; they suggest that a further set back is needed and this view is 
shared by the Civic Society.  These concerns are fully understood and it is acknowledged 
that a greater set back would perhaps improve the relationship with the principal villa; 
however, that said, the judgement has to be whether or not this element of the proposal is 
so harmful as to warrant refusal of the whole scheme. Reflecting on this point, and in light 
of the positive changes to the scheme secured on the back of the heritage concerns, 
officers feel that the set back proposed, which is some 1.7m, together with the single 
storey nature of the garage, is sufficient to achieve an appropriate degree of subservience 
to the listed building.  In addition, the full-height end pilasters on the existing building will 
further ensure that the historic form of the building is not compromised.  Currently, a trellis 
fence panel and gate extends across the site which is only nominally set back from the 
principal elevation.   

6.2.4 The proposals, as amended, are therefore considered to be acceptable on design 
grounds. 

6.3 Impact on neighbouring amenity 

6.3.1 Saved local plan policy CP4 requires new development to avoid causing 
unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users; Note 1 to the policy advises 
that in assessing impact, the Council will have regard to a range of matters including, but 
not limited to, loss of light, loss of outlook and loss of privacy. The policy is consistent with 
the advice set out within adopted JCS policy SD14 and the NPPF. 

6.3.2 The neighbouring property to the north, which the garage would sit alongside, has 
three windows in its side elevation at ground floor, one of which is obscurely glazed, and 
levels of light reaching these windows would undoubtedly be affected, to a degree, by the 
proposal.  However the neighbour has confirmed that these windows serve a downstairs 
WC, stairwell; and kitchen, and that the kitchen is also served by an additional light source 
to the rear.   

6.3.3 Established guidance (Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A guide to 
good practice, P Littlefair, 2011) advises that windows to toilets and circulation spaces 
need not be analysed when assessing impact on daylight; these rooms are identified as 
not requiring daylight.  As such, the only window in the side of the neighbouring property 
that could reasonably be afforded any protection is that serving the kitchen; however, as 
previously noted, the kitchen is served by an additional window in the rear elevation which 
would be unaffected by the proposals.  With particular regard to sunlight, windows serving 
kitchens are considered to be less important. 

6.3.4 The proposals are therefore considered to be acceptable on amenity grounds.  

6.4 Access and highway safety 

6.4.1 Adopted JCS policy INF1 advises that planning permission will be permitted where 
the impact of the development on the highway network is not severe. The policy is 
consistent with advice set out within the NPPF. 

6.4.2 In this instance, access to the site would be unchanged; vehicular access would 
continue to be provided via the existing driveway from Tivoli Road. 

6.4.3 The proposed garage is therefore considered to be acceptable on highway safety 
grounds. 

Page 23



6.5 Recommendation 

6.5.1 With all of the above in mind, the proposals are considered to accord with all 
relevant local and national planning policy, and the recommendation is to grant both 
planning permission and listed building consent subject to the following conditions: 

7. CONDITIONS  
 
18/00127/FUL 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
18/00127/LBC 
 
 1 The works hereby granted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the 

date of this consent. 
  
 Reason:  To accord with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 

and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 2 The development hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.  
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the following elements of the scheme shall not 

be installed, implemented or carried out unless in accordance with details which shall 
have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 
 a) External doors; 
 b) Roof lantern; 
 c) Garage doors; 
 d) Internal doors; 
 e) Architraves; and 
 f)  Skirting. 
 
 The works shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the details so approved.  
  
 Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic qualities of the Listed 

Building, having regard to Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy (adopted 2017), 
Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and 
Historic Environment Good Practice Advice (note 2). 

   
 4 The new render work shall match the facing render work on the principal listed building 

existing building in respect of material, mix, colour and texture. 
  

Page 24



 Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic qualities of the listed 
building, having regard to Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy (adopted 2017), 
Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and 
Historic Environment Good Practice Advice (note 2). 

 
 5 All disturbed surfaces shall be made good using materials to match the existing 

materials, composition, form, finish and colour of the existing building.  
  
 Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic qualities of the listed 

building, having regard to Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy (adopted 2017), 
Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and 
Historic Environment Good Practice Advice (note 2). 

   

INFORMATIVE 
 

18/00127/FUL 
 
 1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the 
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with 
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise 
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of 
sustainable development.  

  
 At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application 

advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority 
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications 
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to 
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress. 

  
 In this instance, the authority sought the omission of works which were considered to be 

unacceptable. 
  
 Following these negotiations, the application now constitutes sustainable development 

and has therefore been approved in a timely manner. 
 
   
 

 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00127/FUL OFFICER: Miss Michelle Payne 

DATE REGISTERED: 22nd January 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY : 19th March 2018 

WARD: Park PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr And Mrs Nash 

LOCATION: 21 Tivoli Road, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Extension and alteration of existing single storey garage block, and alterations to rear 
ground floor fenestration 

 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  1 
Number of objections  1 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  0 

 
   

19 Tivoli Road 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 2TD 
 

 

Comments: 24th January 2018 
I have grave concerns here about light depravation along my SSE facing wall, which houses 
three windows.  
 
Of highest concern are my kitchen and stair windows that already struggle to gain enough light. 
We value our light especially that reflected off our neighbours house, and direct filtration. It is 
important to us, especially as my mother has macular degeneration and sources of all illumination 
are valuable when she chooses to use the stairs. We especially value light into our kitchen come 
afternoon evening, regardless of the month. 
 
The height of the proposed new extended garage is an issue that I believe would deprive us of 
large if not all direct and indirect daylight and cast us into shadow. 
 
In my 48 years of living here, there have been two applications to extend or build extensively in 
the proposed area. Both were either conscientiously scaled back/modified or rejected along 
similar grounds. There is precedence here. 
 
I have no objection to trying to extend the garage area, it makes sense, but the height and scope 
are enormous and will have profound effects on us. This is no small alteration. 
 
Is there no way to find a compromise? 
 
The rest of the application does not effect us. 
 
Comments: 24th January 2018 
Further to my previous points, it has been highlighted to me, that the garage extension is easlily 
3-4 car lengths. As there are already two vehicles on site, and a business van that attends I am 
concerned the number of vehicles incident at the site is going to increase dramatically - especially 
if a business fleet is moving in, or a business workspace is being established (there is a building 
business). I am concerned about noise to my 87 year old mother, and congestion. Tivoli Road 
already has a massive congestion issue, acknowledged by Council and all political parties. If 

Page 27



large vehicle numbers are a consequence - the issues will be significant. This is a big garage 
extension for many vehicles 
 
Comments: 25th January 2018 
I do not own 19 Tivoli Road. Upon my fathers death in 2016, the house passed fully to my 
mother. I currently hold full Power of Attorney in finance, property and medical.  As such, I am 
acting on the combined wishes of my late father, my mother and myself. 
 
Further information. From my late fathers testimony, and recollections from my mother and family 
friends. It relates to precedence. 
 
The previous planning application to build in the same area of garage extension, either by the 
previous occupants, or the ones before, was denied on the grounds of diminished light and 
issues to do with light/shade and casting significant precentage shadow/blockage. There may 
have been a dispute involved. 
 
However, from memory, there was possibly a stipulation set down to my late father by the Council 
and planners. The stipulation stated that, building application would be denied if attempts to 
maximise light to our south-eastern house-wall were maintained by side-fencing no more than 6 
feet with trellis work to permit further ingress of sunlight. This stipulation extended to the side gate 
and upper trellis work, with light incident at the toilet window. Particular note was made about the 
angle of incident sunlight via the side gate, and trellis work. The rules and measurements were 
apparently precise. 
 
I have no idea what the above means - or if its even relevant or accurate. However, my late father 
has complied with the stipulation in full. 
 
However, there is now a wrinkle. On December 15th 2017, a supposed burglar, entered our 
premises and firstly, smashed the gate to bits, but made barely any effort to enter the house or 
steal anything. Police and forensics were baffled. 
 
As part of the insurance company refit, the replacement side gate is much taller and has no trellis 
work. This was set down by the insurance company, and I could not afford to upgrade to a metal 
gate or better. They only offered like for like. 
 
As such, the current gate may be in breach of stipulation. If this is true, I give notice to the 
Planning Officer, I will order the side gate to be reduced in height, back to six feet, with trellis 
work, if this will restore the status quo. I have no idea if the stipulation is still in place, or whether 
my late father came to other agreements with the Council/planners/proposers. 
 
The above is based on memory and testimony of others, and limited instruction from my late 
father. 
 
Comments: 30th January 2018 
Letter attached. . 

  
 

 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00182/FUL OFFICER: Mr Joe Seymour 

DATE REGISTERED: 31st January 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY: 28th March 2018 

WARD: St Pauls PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Mr Samra 

AGENT: H A Planning Ltd 

LOCATION: 7 Victoria Street, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Two storey rear extension 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Refuse 

  

 
 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 33
Agenda Item 6b



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 7 Victoria Street is a mid-terrace house in the St Paul’s area of Cheltenham. The site is 
located within the St Paul’s Character Area of Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area as 
the houses in this area were built in the 19th century. 

1.2 The proposal involves the construction of a single storey rear extension to create an en 
suite bedroom and an extension at first floor level to create a new bathroom. A conversion 
of the basement to create a fifth bedroom is also proposed, although this element of the 
scheme does not require planning permission.  

1.3 The Ward Member for St Paul’s, Cllr Karl Hobley has raised concerns that the proposal 
may present an over development of a very small property/plot and that it will result in a 
community imbalance caused by further HMOs in this area. Cllr Hobley considers this to 
be a material consideration in light of the proposals currently out for consultation as part of 
the Cheltenham plan regarding an article 4 direction in St Paul’s. 

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
 Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
 Conservation Area 
 Smoke Control Order 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design 
BE 2 Residential character in conservation areas  
BE 6 Back lanes in conservation areas  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD8 Historic Environment 
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008) 
Central conservation area: St. Paul's Character Area and Management Plan (July 2008) 
 
National Guidance 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
Gloucestershire Centre For Environmental Records 
13th February 2018 
 
Report available to view online.  
 
 
Housing Standards Officer 
After having a look at the floor plans for the proposed HMO, the following is noted: 
 

1. Personal Hygiene – Provision of bath/shower, water closet & wash hand basin is 
unsatisfactory. 

2. Basement bedroom – Provision of natural light will need to be confirmed. 
3. Basement bedroom – Provision of means of escape onto public footpath is 

unsatisfactory. 
4. Ground floor living room – Provision of natural light will need to be confirmed. 

 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

Number of letters sent 2 

Total comments received 0 

Number of objections 0 

Number of supporting 0 

General comment 0 

 
 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining Issues  

6.2 The determining issues for this planning application are the design of the proposal and its 
impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the impact it would 
have on neighbouring properties.  

6.3 The issue of Houses in Multiple Occupation also covered in this report because the Ward 
Member expressed concerns about it.  

6.4 Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area  

6.5 The proposed single storey extension would extend 6.3 metres from the original rear 
elevation formed by the kitchen/WC area. This extension would reach the very end of the 
rear garden to the rear boundary wall which separates the property from the unnamed 
back lane to the rear of both Victoria Street and Albert Street. 

6.6 The single storey extension would be 2.9 metres in width and its northern wall would also 
form the common boundary with the neighbour 9 Victoria Street. The plot is only 4.4 
metres wide which means the residual outdoor amenity space for the dwelling would be a 
narrow area measuring 1.5 metres in width and 9 metres in length (13.5m2). 

6.7 The proposed extension is more than half the width of the main dwelling and it would 
extend the entire length of the rear garden. This type of extension is considered not to be 
a subservient addition to the host building as advocated in the Council’s Residential 
Alterations and Extensions SPD. The flat-roof extension would appear bulky in the street 
scene and it would be at odds to the smaller and subservient pitched-roof additions 
typically found to the rear of terraced houses in the locality. 

Page 35



6.8 Furthermore, Local Plan Policy BE6 states for developments on back lanes in 
Conservation Areas, adequate amenity space should remain within the existing property. 
NPPF paragraph 17 (point 4) states that development should secure high quality design 
and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings. 
The proposed development is considered to be contrary to both of these policies. 

6.9 It is acknowledged that a single storey extension, similar to the proposal in question, has 
been built at the neighbouring property 5 Victoria Street. This extension which extends to 
the rear boundary wall does not set a precedent for other similar extensions to be built. 
Historic ordnance survey maps show the extension at number 5 has been in situ for many 
decades long before the aforementioned planning policies were adopted.  

6.10 No objection is raised to the proposed first floor extension as this involves a minor 
enlargement of an existing first floor extension. No objection is raised either to the 
basement extension as this does not require planning permission. Basement extensions 
require building regulations approval which is determined separately from planning 
decisions.   

6.11 However, the size and scale of the proposed single storey extension is considered to 
constitute a poor design that fails to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 
Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area. The proposal is deemed to be contrary to the 
design guidance contained within Local Plan Policies CP7, BE2 and BE6, in addition to 
the Council’s Residential Alterations and Extensions SPD and the relevant guidance 
within the JCS and NPPF.  

6.12 Impact on neighbouring properties 

6.13 The single storey extension would be 2.95 metres in height and its northern wall would 
also form the common boundary with the neighbour 9 Victoria Street. This boundary 
currently consists of a low brick wall with a trellis fence on top to bring the total height of 
the common boundary enclosure to approximately 2 metres.  

6.14 The trellis fence adds a degree of mutual privacy, whilst not creating such a physically 
dominating boundary between the two properties. The proposed extension would change 
this arrangement meaning the neighbours at number 9 would be subject to the flanking 
north elevation of the single storey extension for the entire length of their rear garden at a 
height of 2.95 metres.  

6.15 It is considered that this would constitute an unacceptable overbearing impact for the 
neighbours at number 9. In the event that the proposed single storey extension was 
permitted, it would be difficult for the local planning authority to resist similar extensions at 
other terraced properties in the locality, which could have a negative cumulative impact on 
the amenities of even more present and future residents.  

6.16 For this reason, the proposal is deemed to be contrary to the relevant guidance found 
within Local Plan Policy CP4, JCS Policies SD4 and SD14 and NPPF paragraph 17 (point 
4), which all seek to ensure residential amenity between residents is maintained.  

6.17 Houses in Multiple Occupation 

6.18 The Ward Member has raised concerns that the proposal would create another House in 
Multiple Occupation (HMO), which would have a negative cumulative on the community in 
St Paul’s.  

6.19 In October 2010 the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 was amended 
to include a new use class: C4 (Small Houses in Multiple Occupation). This use is defined 
as: “Small shared houses occupied by between three and six unrelated individuals, as 
their only or main residence, who share basic amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom.” 

Page 36



6.20 Large HMOs are shared houses with seven or more bedrooms. This is a sui generis use 
in the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, which means that planning 
permission is always required to change to this use.  

6.21 Changing the use of a property from C3 to C4 (and vice versa) is a ‘permitted change’, 
which means planning permission is currently not required to change a conventional 
residential property into a small shared house, a student house for example. 

6.22 The proposed extensions, if permitted, would change the property from a three-bed 
dwelling into a five-bed dwelling. Therefore, as a five-bed dwelling, 7 Victoria Street could 
be classed as either a large C3 dwelling or a C4 small HMO depending on how it was 
used and who occupied it.  

6.23 The proposal has been submitted as a householder extension application. At the moment, 
this does not prohibit the applicant from using the dwelling for C3 or C4 purposes as 
changing between the two uses is permitted development. 

6.24 In the emerging Cheltenham Plan, which at the time of writing is in its public consultation 
stage, Policy HM5 would only permit the creation of both small (C4) and large (sui 
generis) HMOs subject to certain criteria.  

6.25 An Article 4 Direction would also need to be created to remove the permitted change in 
the amended Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order that currently allows the 
permitted change from C3 to C4 (and vice versa). This would mean any proposed 
changes between these two use classes would require planning permission, subject to 
Policy HM5.  

6.26 However, because the Cheltenham Plan has not been adopted, or even submitted to the 
Planning Inspectorate for adoption, no weight can be attributed to Policy HM5 for the 
determination of this application.  

6.27 Perhaps more relevant to this application, the proposed Article 4 Direction restricting C3 to 
C4 changes does not exist. This means the local planning authority cannot refuse the 
application due to any perceived concerns about the creation of a small HMO at the 
present time, although this may change in the future subject to the adoption of the 
Cheltenham Plan and the creation of an Article 4 Direction. 

6.28 Other Matters 

6.29 The concerns raised by the Housing Standards Officer would be assessed during the 
course of an application for building regulations approval. 

6.30 The presence of protected species has been identified within the vicinity of the site; 
however it is considered that the proposal would not have a material impact on the habitat 
of these species. 

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 The proposed development is considered to be unacceptable for the reasons outlined in 
this report which are summarised in the refusal reasons below.  

7.2 Consequently, the recommendation is to refuse this planning application. 

8. REFUSAL REASONS 
 

1. It is considered that the excessive size and poor design of the proposed extension would 
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of Cheltenham’s Central 

Page 37



Conservation Area. The flat-roof extension would appear bulky in the street scene and it 
would be at odds to the smaller and subservient pitched-roof additions typically found to 
the rear of terraced houses in the locality. The proposal is deemed to be contrary to the 
design guidance contained within Local Plan Policies CP7, BE2 and BE6, in addition to 
the Council’s Residential Alterations and Extensions SPD and the relevant guidance 
within the JCS and NPPF.  
 

2. The proposed extension would occupy the majority of the rear garden leaving a residual 
outdoor amenity space that is considered to be too small for a dwelling with five 
bedrooms. An extension of the height and length that is proposed in close proximity to 
the adjoining neighbour 9 Victoria Street would create an unacceptable overbearing 
impact. Therefore, the proposal would result in a poor standard of amenity for existing 
and future occupiers of both 7 and 9 Victoria Street. The proposal is deemed to be 
contrary to the relevant guidance found within Local Plan Policy CP4, JCS Policies SD4 
and SD14 and NPPF paragraph 17 (point 4). 

 
 
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00332/FUL OFFICER: Mr Martin Chandler 

DATE REGISTERED: 19th February 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY:  

WARD: Pittville PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Chapel Spa Ltd 

AGENT:  

LOCATION: Chapel Spa, North Place, Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Retention of dropped kerb (temporary permission granted 15/01208/FUL) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation at Committee 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 39
Agenda Item 6c



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the retention of an existing dropped kerb 
that is located diagonally in front of Chapel Spa. Permission was granted for this dropped 
kerb on a temporary basis (2 years) by planning committee in February 2016. The reason 
for the temporary approval was given as follows: 

1.2 The current proposal is contrary to local plan policy BE7, however given the 
circumstances surrounding this application a temporary permission is deemed 
appropriate. A temporary permission enables the Authority to retain control over the 
works, in the interests of the visual amenities of the area which is designated as a 
Conservation Area. 

1.3 The application is before committee at the discretion of the Development Manager due to 
the previous decision and the land interest that Cheltenham Borough Council has around 
the application site. The minutes of the previous planning committee meeting are 
appended to this report.  

1.4 Members will visit the site on planning view.  

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
 Airport Safeguarding over 45m 
 Conservation Area 
 Core Commercial Area 
 Listed Buildings Grade 2 
 Residents Associations 
 Smoke Control Order 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
 
14/01925/LBC      26th November 2014     GRANT 
Masonry repairs to Portico and northern boundary wall 
 
14/02108/LBC      19th January 2015     GRANT 
Various internal alterations to reception area to include blocking up of an existing doorway, 
creation a new double door opening with glazed fanlight over, and alterations to change 
existing flush door from an opening door to a sliding door 
 
15/01208/FUL      19th February 2016     PER 
Dropped kerb and hardstanding to facilitate parking area 
 
16/02067/LBC      10th April 2017     GRANT 
Signage to portico of the building, two free standing signs to the front and addition of up 
lighting 
 
16/02067/ADV      10th April 2017     GRANT 
Signage to portico of the building, two free standing signs to the front and addition of up 
lighting 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

Saved Local Plan Policies 
CP 4 Safe and sustainable living  
CP 7 Design  
BE 7 Parking on forecourts or front gardens in conservation areas  
 
Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies 
SD4 Design Requirements 
SD8 Historic Environment 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Central conservation area: Lower High Street Character Area and Management Plan (July 
2008)  
 
National Guidance 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
GCC Highways Planning Liaison Officer 
26th February 2018 
 
I refer to the above planning application received on 19th February 2018, with Plan No 
1988-SK4, to which no Highway objection is raised. 
 
The construction of a new access will require the extension of a verge and/or footway 
crossing from the carriageway under the Highways Act 1980 - Section 184 and the 
Applicant is required to obtain the permission of Amey Gloucestershire on 08000 514 514 
or gcchighway@amey.co.uk before commencing any works on the highway. 
 
Statement of Due Regard 
Consideration has been given as to whether any inequality and community impact will be 
created by the transport and highway impacts of the proposed development. It is 
considered that no inequality is caused to those people who had previously utilised those 
sections of the existing transport network that are likely to be impacted on by the proposed 
development. 
 
It is considered that the following protected groups will not be affected by the transport 
impacts of the proposed development: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, 
other groups (such as long term unemployed), social-economically deprived groups, 
community cohesion, and human rights. 

 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

Number of letters sent 12 

Total comments received 0 

Number of objections 0 

Number of supporting 0 

General comment 0 

 
5.1 Letters were sent to 12 neighbouring properties. A site notice was put up and an 

advertisement in the Gloucestershire Echo. The only representations have come from the 
Council’s property team and staff of Chapel Spa. These will be discussed in full below.  

Page 41



6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

Officer comments to follow 
 
   
 

 
 

Page 42



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00332/FUL OFFICER: Mr Martin Chandler 

DATE REGISTERED: 19th February 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY :  

WARD: Pittville PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Chapel Spa Ltd 

LOCATION: Chapel Spa North Place Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Retention of dropped kerb (temporary permission granted 15/01208/FUL) 

 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  1 
Number of objections  0 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  1 

 
   

Chapel Spa 
North Place 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL50 4DW 
 

 

Comments: 13th March 2018 
Letter attached.  

 
  
 

 

Page 43



Page 44



Pages 39 – 44    16
th

 March 2018 

 

1 

 

 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00332/FUL OFFICER: Mr Martin Chandler 

DATE REGISTERED: 19th February 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY:  

WARD: Pittville PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Chapel Spa Ltd 

AGENT: n/a 

LOCATION: Chapel Spa, North Place, Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Retention of dropped kerb (temporary permission granted 15/01208/FUL) 

 

 

Update to Officer Report 
 
ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS  
 
Since publication of the Agenda on Wednesday, two further letters of support have been received.  
These are attached.   

1. OFFICER COMMENTS  

1.1 Determining Issues  

1.1.1 The key considerations with this application are the impact the proposal will have on the 
setting of the listed building, the impact on the character and appearance of the 
conservation area, and potential impacts on the future delivery of the redevelopment of the 
adjacent Portland Street car park.   

1.2 History 

1.2.1 Members may recall from the previous committee that the application was brought about 
because Chapel Spa can no longer access land which is in their ownership and that they 
have historically used to park cars on. This land, located on Warwick Place, has been 
stopped up by the County Council (it is no longer public highway) and has since been 
closed off at either end to prevent access. 

1.2.2 The dropped kerb is designed to enable the spa to access this land and continue parking. 

1.2.3 Part of the previous application also enabled a parking space to the front of the Chapel 
itself. It was this element that was deemed to be harmful the setting of the listed building 
and conservation area and was primarily the reason for the temporary consent. It is of note 
that this part of the proposal has been removed from this proposal 

1.3 Impact on the listed building and conservation area 

1.3.1 In its current form, it is difficult to argue that the proposal has a harmful impact on the 
setting of the Chapel or the conservation area. The spaces to the front of the building that 
members will see on site are no longer proposed in this application; the proposal is simply 
for the retention of the dropped kerb to access the land in Warwick Place.  

1.3.2 Using Warwick Place for the parking of cars is essentially how the land has been used for 
many years now and historically of course, the land in question was public highway, 
designed for cars.  

Page 45



Pages 39 – 44    16
th

 March 2018 

 

2 

 

1.3.3 Officers are satisfied that the removal of the spaces to the front of the building ensures that 
there is no harm to the setting of the listed building or the character and appearance of the 
conservation area.  

1.3.4 If members are minded to grant planning permission, a suitably worded condition would be 
necessary to ensure that no parking took place in that location. 

1.4 Impact on redevelopment proposals 

1.4.1 In light of the changes to the application discussed above, this matter is probably the key 
material consideration in the assessment of this application. In response to the application, 
the Council’s property team have provided the following observations: 

1.4.2 Warwick Place you will know was former highway which the County un-adopted and 
effectively abandoned years ago. We acquired the majority of Warwick Place from the 
County initially to facilitate the provision of a bus node as part of the North Place / Portland 
St development. 

1.4.3 The theory being that it would enable easy access to North Place for those travelling along 
Fairview Road from east to west. The bus node was dropped and so the options now are to 
bring Warwick Place to adoptable standard and would provide a useful area for landscaping 
thus enhancing the development of Portland St as and when it moves forward. 

1.4.4 Due to the current position on both North Place and Portland St development sites we have 
granted a licence for Mr Louka’s staff to cross our land fronting North Place so as to get 
access to the strip of land in Warwick Place still owned by Mr Louka. 

1.4.5 To approve the application would in my view jeopardise the future land swap when the 
development of North Place and Portland St commences. Car parking on the strip of land in 
Warwick Place when the scheme in Portland St has been built out would be a lot more 
visually detrimental than a single parking space to the front of Chapel Spa. 

1.4.6 I am conscious that the space may be contrary to the policy about the setting of a listed 
building, but believe the alternative of half a dozen in Warwick Place to be infinitely worse. 
In addition as stated above the small area at the front of the building for which the drop curb 
is required has been used to my knowledge for 8.5 years. 

1.4.7 Officers have some sympathy with the property team because bringing forward 
development of Portland Street and North Place car parks has proved challenging over the 
years.  

1.4.8 Members will also be aware that the authority has recently been successful in securing 
government funding to help with the delivery of the Portland Street redevelopment. This will 
likely see a revised planning application being submitted with fresh proposals for the site.  

1.4.9 Warwick Place forms part of the consented scheme. Whilst originally proposed as a bus 
node (which is no longer likely), the land still plays an important role in enabling a 
successful redevelopment to come forward. It is not necessarily critical to the 
redevelopment aspirations, but if can be included then it could well make for a better 
scheme.  

1.4.10 That said, the land is still owned by Chapel Spa and they are unable to access it because of 
fencing installed by this authority; the desire for the dropped kerb and the benefits to the 
business are entirely understood. It is also understood that a permanent consent gives the 
business greater confidence moving forward that either they are able to retain an element of 
parking, or they have a stronger negotiating position as and when further land deals are 
discussed. 

Page 46



Pages 39 – 44    16
th

 March 2018 

 

3 

 

1.4.11 On reflection, and very much on balance, in light of the recent government funding, officers 
conclude that the best course of action is to grant a further temporary consent for the 
dropped kerb, for a further 2 year period. It is anticipated that in this time frame, a lot of 
progress could be made with the Warwick Place land which in turn could provide more 
certainty for all parties. This balanced conclusion is primarily driven by the desire to treat the 
broader area in a comprehensive manner in an attempt to allow the best redevelopment to 
come forward, in whatever form that might be. 

1.4.12 Notwithstanding the above, it should be noted that the current owner of the Portland Street 
site has made no representations in relation to this proposal and the implications that it may 
have on their redevelopment aspirations. It is difficult to know what to make of this silence; 
they may be unconcerned by the application or perhaps unwilling to offer comment. That 
said, the authority has a duty to consider the bigger picture and given the significance of this 
broader site in the conservation area, on balance, a permanent approval may have a 
negative impact on redevelopment proposals, although it certainly would not sterilise them. 

 

2. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The proposal, in its current form, will not harm the setting of the listed building or harm the 
character or appearance of the conservation area; the applicant simply wants to use land 
that is in their ownership and that was previously functional public highway to park cars.  

2.2 The implications for Portland Street car park are unproven and the owner of that site has 
made no comment on this planning application. The case put forward by the applicant is 
completely understood as are the thoughts provided by the Council’s property team. 

2.3 Weighing all of these considerations, officers have concluded that the most pragmatic way 
forward is to approve the dropped kerb for a further two year period. Whilst this would not 
give the applicant the certainty that they desire, and officers have sympathy on this point 
given their restricted access to land that is in their ownership, the consequences of a 
permanent approval are unknown and in light of recent government funding, 
comprehensive redevelopment should be given every opportunity to come forward.  

2.4 It is recommended that temporary approval be granted for a further two years. 

 

3. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES  
 
To follow.  
 
   
 

 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00332/FUL OFFICER: Mr Martin Chandler 

DATE REGISTERED: 19th February 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY :  

WARD: Pittville PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Chapel Spa Ltd 

LOCATION: Chapel Spa, North Place, Cheltenham 

PROPOSAL: Retention of dropped kerb (temporary permission granted 15/01208/FUL) 

 

 

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS 
 

  
Builder 
 

 

Comments: 15th March 2018 
Letter attached.  
 
     

Former Owner Of Chapel Spa 
 

 

Comments: 16th March 2018 
Letter attached.   
 
   

The Storyteller 
North Place 
Cheltenham 
 

 

Comments: 16th March 2018 
Letter attached.   
 
  
 

 

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



 
 

From: Mina Louka  
Date: 19 March 2018 at 02:39:15 GMT 
To: Councillors 
Subject: Ref: 18/00332/FUL - Chapel Spa Cheltenham 

Dear Councillors, 
 
I hope you are well. 
 
My application for a permanent dropped kerb goes to the committee on the 22nd March 
2018, and I would like you to support this application. The information attached to this 
email will give you a much clearer picture. 
 
Please go into CBC planning website and find the published documents to be able to follow 
this email. 
 
I have also attached the following documents: 

1. Plan showing the extent of the car park area belonging to Chapel Spa (10 spaces). 
2. Plan received from David Roberts showing the very small piece of land that the 

council wanted to swap for my car park area. 
3. Pdf containing two emails from David Roberts (Development Dept.) to myself, 

showing that the Development Dept. were encouraging the application for dropped 
kerb in 2015 and had completed the application for me. I only signed it and paid the 
fees. 

4. Pdf email David Roberts confirming that the Portland St. Car Park has been leased for 
35 years from March 2017 with 5 yearly breaks. 

5. Statement from the original owner of Chapel Spa (1994). 
6. 15/01208/FUL agenda and minutes 2016. 
7. Martin Chandler’s Report for the present application. 
8. Timeline pdf. 

My name is Mina Louka and I am the owner of Chapel Spa in North Place Cheltenham. 

 I stood before you in the Planning Committee meeting, two years ago, and asked for 
permission to install a dropped kerb outside Chapel Spa. 

You all sympathised with me, but still only allowed me to have temporary permission for 
two years. 

Some of you thought that you would be seeing me again in two years time, in exactly the 
same circumstances, as nothing would have changed. 

You were right! Nothing has changed, and I am forced to go through this whole stressful 
procedure again. 

Page 53



If the Land Department of CBC have their way I will be doing this twice more, before the first 
break (after 4 years) in the 35 year lease (that has only been signed 12 months ago), 
between Auger Buckler and NCP. 

I would like to summaries and comment on the statements made by interested 
departments in Martin Chandler’s report: 

1. Highways are happy with the application. 
2. Planning  and Listed Building are happy with the application. 
3. Many public letters of support for the application. 
4. The council has sent 12 letters (even to Augur Buchler) but no objections. 
5. Development Department against the application. 

Please note: that as you can see in the attached emails it was David Roberts and Jeremy 
Williamson (Development Dept.) who instigated the application for a dropped kerb, which 
was put forward by them in 2015. I was only required to sign and pay for it. 
 
Now they are objecting to my application. This is manipulation and abuse of power. 
 
Development Dept. seems to think that they already have the right to my land, by actions 
such as fencing off access to it, and depriving me of its amenity without discussion or 
notification. They have even referred to my land as “still owned by Mr. Louka”, - how 
absolutely crass. 

However, after denying access to Chapel Spa land which we have owned for 33 years (as per 
attached statements), the Development Dept. have adopted a definite tendency to think 
they own it.  

They are assuming that a land swop will take place, but have not communicated this to me 
personally since they abruptly ceased communications with me in 2015 after the collapse of 
the Portland Street car park deal.  

This land swop, will take my 10 parking spaces, and the Council will give me one space in 
front of Chapel Spa, a listed building which LBC has entirely ruled out ( this was the only 
objection in the previous application) this is not fair! 
 
In paragraph 6.4.5 & 6 in the report attached: The Development Dept. is advocating parking 
in front of a listed building as if it was of no concern. Also they are giving the impression that 
parking cars in Warwick Place is much worse, than parking one outside a Listed Building. No 
wonder the Public get confused if Officers of the Council advocate ignoring legislation. 
 
It was Land Dept. who agreed the redevelopment plans for Portland St. Car Park, and agreed 
to put a Bus Node, Taxi Rank, and Motorbike stands in Warwick Place as part of the 
development. All noisy, polluting and ugly which does not sit well a few meters from a 
Grade II listed building. 
 

Page 54



In paragraph 6.4.9: This is an alarm bell ringing, It looks like the bus node has not been 
scrapped, just “not likely"! 

Surely not after all the promises made to me by David Roberts that Warwick Place would 
not become a highway. 

Facts: 

1. Fact. I came to Cheltenham in 2014, invested £1.5 million, increased staff working 
hours by 16000 hours in the first year, increased the visitors to Cheltenham as my 
clients come from London and from all over the country as well as Cheltenham. 

2. Fact. It is my land and the Council did stop me using it (perhaps illegally, I don’t 
know, but I will find out very soon) 

3. Fact. The Council fenced off Warwick Place, causing me many problems with my 
business, I could not get / keep staff. 

4. Fact.  I had to fight very hard to get permission to access my land, and eventually got 
it. 

5. Fact. Previously, my staff’s cars were getting damaged through bumping up and 
down the high kerb. The installation of a dropped kerb has stopped that. 

6. Fact. I have spent over £3000 to install the dropped kerb. 
7. Fact. The Portland St. Car Park has been leased for 35 years with 5 yearly breaks 

from March 2017! 
8. Fact. Augur Buchler did not object to my application, but the development dept did. 

Why? Doesn’t Augur Buchler know about the new government fundings mentioned 
in 6.4.8? 

9. Fact. The development Dept. has not given any new news at all, just repeating what 
they had said in 2014. Now we are 4 years on! 

10. Fact.  There is another £500,000 that I need to spent on Chapel Spa. However I do 
not have the confidence to do so when I can lose my staff at any time as happened 
previously  in 2014 & 2015, when CBC stopped me accessing my Staff Car Park in 
Warwick Place. 

11. Fact. The dropped kerb is in front of Chapel Spa and is needed at the moment to 
access the Car Park. In the future, if there is a land swap as the development dept. 
wishes, of course I will need this dropped kerb to access the space that they will give 
me in exchange. So how can this dropped kerb affect any future redevelopment, 
unless they knock down Chapel Spa?! 

The Conclusion and Recommendation: 

The first two paragraphs are a fair and simple assessment of my position, and acknowledge 
that I have done my best to comply with the Listed Building objection in my first application. 

It also points out that nothing is known about the Portland Street car park progress.  

The owner of Portland Street car park (Augur Buchler) has not even made a comment about 
this application. 

Page 55



Perhaps Augur Buchler is content to lease it out as a Car Park!  Who knows? The Land Dept. 
can’t even tell us the reason. But I am sure that they can see that my dropped kerb will not 
be a threat to their plans. 

So how is it that the Officers of the Council have come to the decision to go against all the 
evidence! 

I am now looking to the Councilors on this Committee, as my last hope. I urge you to vote 
with your conscience, put this injustice right. 

Please disagree with the recommendations and vote to grant me permanent permission for 
a dropped kerb, so that I can get on with my business. 

This is the last time that I will apply, as it is taking up too much of my time and energy. If this 
does not get approved this time as permanent, I will go to appeal or judicial review in order 
to obtain justice. 

Kind regards, 

Mr. Mina Louka BA, DMS, FCMI 

Managing Director 
 
 

Page 56



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00215/TPO OFFICER: Mr Christopher Chavasse 

DATE REGISTERED: 30th January 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY: 27th March 2018 

WARD: Oakley Ward PARISH: Oakley 

APPLICANT: Ms Kemple 

AGENT: n/a 

LOCATION: 8 Moorcourt Drive, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Yew - Fell because of excessive shading and low amenity value.  Replant 
with 3-4 fruit trees. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse 
 

 
 
 
 
This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007 

 

Page 57
Agenda Item 6d



1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL 

1.1 This yew tree is in the rear garden of 8 Moorcourt Drive.  The rear garden backs on to 
Pittville Circus Road and the tree is near to the rear boundary.  The applicant proposes 
complete removal of the yew tree.   

 

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
Constraints: 
 Conservation Area 
 Tree Preservation Order 17 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
03/00166/TPO      26th January 2004     PER 
Remove branch overhanging path and crown thin by 15% and reshape 
 
03/00167/CACN      18th February 2003     NOTREQ 
Various works to trees. 
 
14/00722/CACN      28th May 2014     NOOBJ 
Yew Tree T1 in rear Garden - reduce by approx. 3m and re-shape 
 
 

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE  

Saved Local Plan Policies 
GE5 – The Borough Council will resist the unnecessary felling of trees on private land.   
 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
No response from Cheltenham Tree Group.   
 
 

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS  
 

Number of letters sent 3 

Total comments received 1 

Number of objections 0 

Number of supporting 1 

General comment 0 

 
5.1 Three letters were sent to neighbours and 2 site notices erected on either side of Pittville 

Circus Road.   

 

6. OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1 Determining Issues  

This tree contributes all year to the wooded nature of this part of Pittville Circus Road.  
The tree is well over 100 years old and part of the heritage of the area.  Whilst currently 
not highly visible the tree has a long safe useful life expectancy and as such could 
become more apparent in the future.  Such a species seems synonymous with Regency 

Page 58



Cheltenham planting.  The tree was reduced in size by approximately 3M in 2014 and is 
therefore less overbearing than previously.  The tree appears to be in good biological 
health and free of significant structural defects.   

6.2 The site and its context  

The tree is in the spacious rear garden which fronts on to Pittville Circus Road.  There are 
several other mature yew trees in adjacent gardens and this tree adds to the relatively 
dense wooded nature of the area.  This tree and scores of others like it all along Pittville 
Circus Road were protected by a Tree Preservation Order served in 1970.  It is assumed 
that such a Preservation Order was served so as to retain the amenity which they provide 
locally.  This tree is not highly visible being situated to the rear of two hollies but its 
proposed removal would be noticeable from Pittville Circus Road.   

6.3 Impact on neighbouring property  

The tree has no significant physical impact on neighbouring properties.   

6.4 Sustainability  

The owner wishes to plant 3-4 fruit trees in the rear garden.  Officers consider that such 
planting could still successfully establish providing such trees are not planted too close to 
the shade cast by this yew, the hollies and also the large horse chestnut tree within the 
highway verge.   

6.5 Other considerations  

Whilst all parts of the yew are poisonous officers do not consider it likely that the foliage 
will be ingested by children.  It is a male yew tree and as such does not produce berries.  
Whilst berries may occasionally occur on branches trees officers have not known cases of 
poisoning by the ingestion of such berries from yew trees in public parks and gardens.  
Whilst the tree produces pollen in the spring time the removal of this tree will not 
significantly alter local pollen levels due to the presence of other yews as well as the many 
springtime pollen producing tree species.  Whilst the tree casts dense shade adjacent 
officers consider further modest pruning will reduce such shade.   

 

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 Whilst the owner would like to plant fruit trees in the rear garden officers consider that this 
can be achieved whilst still retaining the yew and character it locally provides.  The 
recommendation is to refuse permission to fell.  

  

8. REFUSAL REASON 
 
Removal of this tree is contrary to Local Plan Policy GE5.   

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPLICATION NO: 18/00215/TPO OFFICER: Mr Christopher Chavasse 

DATE REGISTERED: 30th January 2018 DATE OF EXPIRY : 27th March 2018 

WARD: Oakley Ward PARISH:  

APPLICANT: Ms Kemple 

LOCATION: 8 Moorcourt Drive, Cheltenham  

PROPOSAL: Yew - Fell because of excessive shading and low amenity value.  Replant with 3-4 fruit 
trees. 

 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Number of contributors  1 
Number of objections  0 
Number of representations 0 
Number of supporting  1 

 
   

7 Moorcourt Drive 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL52 2QL 
 

 

Comments: 8th February 2018 
Letter attached.   
 
   

8 Moorcourt Drive 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL52 2QL 
 

 

Comments: 14th March 2018 
I have tried to call you but have been unable to get through.  I had some further thoughts which I 
hope you can take into account to avoid this matter going to planning committee. 
 
I have contacted the Gloucestershire Orchards Trust following your recommendation and have 
details of some local heritage varieties which would promote bees and other pollinating insects.  I 
have also obtained advice from a specialist orchard nursery who tell me that the fruit trees are 
unlikely to grow with the yew tree being there. 
 
Regarding your suggestion of removing the holly trees instead of the yew, I would prefer them to 
remain because of the security they provide.  They are close to the boundary, prickly and not too 
dense.  This means they will not interfere with the growth of the fruit trees, but more importantly 
will deter people from our garden.  Our property has been burgled previously and things have 
been thrown into the garden from the road (such as the municipal bin).  I would be loathe to 
remove the hollies for fear of removing their deterrent effect. 
 
Also, further research has made me increasingly concerned about the health risks of the yew.  As 
you are aware every single part of the yew tree is deadly poisonous, even in very small quantities 
(apart from the berries as you pointed out).  In addition, they are highly allergenic and are known 
to aggravate asthma - my 4 year old son requires an inhaler. 
 
I do hope that the above would allow you to reconsider your decision. 

Page 61



Page 62


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of last meeting
	6a 18/00127/FUL & LBC 21 Tivoli Road
	21 Tivoli Road - representations
	21 Tivoli letter report
	1 letter


	6b 18/00182/FUL 7 Victoria Street
	6c 18/00332/FUL Chapel Spa, North Place
	Chapel Spa - representation
	letter report
	letter

	Chapel Spa - report update, 16th March
	Chapel Spa - letters of support, 16th March
	letter report 16.03
	builder letter
	1 letter
	storyteller letter

	Chapel Spa applicant email to Members

	6d 18/00215/TPO 8 Moorcourt Drive
	8 Moorcourt Drive - representations
	8 Moorcourt letter report
	1 letter



